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"’;QJuly 27, 2004
; J, Engelhardt appeared on behalf of the Offlce of
ey thics.

-Robért L Galantuccx appeared on behalf of respondent.

‘To‘the Honorable Chlef Justice and Assoc1ate Justices of

 Fg§the Supreme Court of New Jersey.
| Vf  This matter was before us on a motlon for final dlSClpllneA
‘?f?filed by the Offlce of Attorney Ethics ("OAE") based on
: reapondent's oonVLctlon for conspiracy to obstruct justice.

cio%”nt was admitted to the New Jersey bar in 1976. On

(automatic temporary : suspen51on _ following




*

1
~

,‘j{béﬁvictidn of a serious crime). In_re DeMiro,

"(2663),"Hia.sﬁspension remains in effect.

176 N.J. 417

On May 28, 2003, respondent pleaded guilty to a oneé-count

Durlng the plea hearing,

' ;{juatice, in violation of 18 U.S.C.A. 371.

Mr. DeMiro, on or about May 10*" of

2000, were you summoned by James
Treffinger to a meeting at a

.secluded County owned residence in
. Cedar Grove, New Jersey?

And did yoti later learn that you

“were summoned to the meeting to
 provide tactical and political

“L;_advice to Mr. Treffinger?

- Yes.
' who was present at the meeting?

. Myself, Mr. Treffinger, Irene

Almeda, Raj Vvilla and Matthew

"~ Kirnan.!

At the meeting with James

- preffinger and others that day, did

you learn there was a federal

,'1_farmation flled in the United States District Court for the

 kDLstr&@t of New Jersey charging him with conspiracy to obstruct

Assistant Unlted States Attorney

~:a;?erry A. Carbone e11c1ted the factual basis for the plea.

! Thls is the same Matthew Kirnan whose matter (motion for final
,dlsc1pline) we reviewed on May 20, 2004. We determined to

' impose an eighteen-month suspension. .

James Treffinger, too, is

curréntly the subject of a motion for final discipline filed by

' the OAE.



i

- investigation pending regarding the

" award of emergency contracts to the

United Gunite Construction, "UGC"
in Paterson, New Jersey?

Yes, sir.

At that meeting, did James W.

Treffinger counsel the Essex County
Engineer to lie about the
circumstances surrounding the award

~of County contracts to United

Gunite Construction?

“Yes, he did.

At that meeting, did James W.

Treffinger counsel the Essex County
Engineer to create false and
misleading documents intended to
justify his award of emergency no
bid contracts to the [sic] United

. -Gunite Construction?

Yes, he did.

After that meeting, did James
".Treffinger instruct you to meet

with three ([sic] County Engineer

and direct him to create the false

and misleading documents as he

suggested on May 10" of 20007
”Yes, he did.

- And did you do so?

&es, I did.

. Did you do all of this knowingly,
. willfully and with the intent to

hinder, delay and prevent the

communication to law enforcement

officers of information relating to
the commigsion of a federal

o offense?




‘A.  Yes, I did.
. [OAEbEx.B34 to 36].2

LA ﬁeépbndent‘ was sentenced on October 21, 2003, by Chief

:Unlted States Distrlct Court Judge John W. B‘isselll. o ‘Prior to
| impes.mg sentence, Judge Bissell granted the government's motion
‘far a downwaxd departure in sentenclng due to reSpondent s
s:.gnificant cooperat:.on. That cooperation was detailed in /}the
“'Ass::.stant Um.ted States Attorney's September 12, 2003 lettér }to
. Juége :giuell:

i, Mr. DeMiro's involvement in the case
,began on May 10, 2000, when he was abruptly
summoned by James Treffinger to a meeting of
~his inner circle at a secluded County-owned
residence in Cedar Grove, New Jersey.

- Unbeknownst to DeMiro, he was summoned by

 Treffinger to discuss an ongoing federal
probe of Jerry Free, a salesman for United

. Gunite Construction, Inc. ("UGC"), a County

" vendor with whom Treffinger had personally
met. and from whom he had personally received

. campaign contributions. During this May 10,
2000 meeting, Treffinger hatched a plan-to

RN . obstruct the ongoing federal probe by

. . . coaching the County Engineer to lie and by

B o o creating a phony paper trail calculated to

J.neulate Treffinger from the extortion of

UGC..

.. In the subsequent months, Treffinger
~ ‘enlisted DeMiro to assist him in carrying
. ‘out his plan to obstruct the ongoing federal
~ investigation. At Treffinger's direction,
DeMiro met with the County Engineer and
‘counseled him on the creation of a phony

‘?ﬂ;,OA{Ei?“yrefefs‘to the brief submitted by the OAE.




’

‘)paper trail. During these discussions,
DeMiro reiterated Treffinger's May 10, 2000
plan to obstruct the investigation and the
‘role both he and the County Englneer were to

play.

Ultimately, in Décember of 2000,
- Mr. DeMiro was confronted with the tape

':_recordlngs of the conversations between him

and the County Engineer. Mr. DeMiro
immediately expressed profound remorse and
agreed then and there to cooperate with the
‘Government in its pending 1nvest1gatlon of
corruption in Essex County.

“Mr. DeMiro's decision to cooperate
against James Treffinger, his longtime
associate, was a difficult one. DeMiro had
~_known Treffinger since the early 1980's.

"DeMiro's decision to cooperate also meant
certain financial ruin. DeMiro was a solo
legal practitioner who depended in large
part. on the income he received from his role
as the Town Attorney for the Town of Verona.
DeMiro's decision to cooperate and plead
guilty to a felony meant losing his license
and - foregoing this income, not to mention
~his ostracization [sic] in the community.
‘Notwithstanding these significant counter-

“yailing pressures, DeMiro agreed to

cooperate and completely, truthfully and

' fully disclose his prior dealings with
 preffinger.

. Mr. DeMiro thereafter provided extremely
timely, critical and useful "assistance to
‘the Government in connection with the
prosecutions of James Treffinger and Matthew
Kirnan. DeMiro attended many debriefing
sessions with investigators and prosecutors
‘during which he provided truthful

- and complete answers to all questions posed.

puring these meetings, DeMiro detailed his

< role in the Treffinger fundraising machine

and the role of others. Given the longtime
close relationship between Treffinger and




 JDeMiro;‘tHe depth, reliability and' accuracy

"~ of his information cannot be overstated.

Mr. DeMiro's detailed information about

.~ games Treffinger disclosed a political

o figure blinded by ambition who used the full
extent of any political office he held to
- advance his own political goals. ’

- Mr. DeMiro's cooperation significantly
. broadened = the  investigation into  Mr.
. Treffinger's activities. For instance, it

“was DeMiro's cooperation that led to the
inclusion in the Treffinger Indictment of

~ Counts Twelve through Fourteen, charging the
use of County funds to pay campaign workers.
‘Treffinger ultimately plead {[sic] guilty to
~ this  scheme, along with the scheme to

obstruct the investigation.. DeMiro's
'~ cooperation has also contributed
significantly to other ongoing

investigations into  public corruption in
"Essex County.

'~ The most significant aspect of DeMiro's
cooperation relates to the covert recordings
he made of his conversations with Treffinger

'3¢b3tween January and October, 2001. . Those

‘gecretly~recorded conversations contain the
" most damning evidence gathered during the
_ investigation into Treffinger's activities.
In those discussions, Treffinger described
in graphic detail the lengths to which he
‘went to obstruct the federal investigation,.
which . included his efforts to seek an
~ appointment to the Office of the United
‘-States Attorney in order to terminate the
. investigation and to improperly control
“County employees with knowledge of the
.- scheme by making favorable personnel
~ decisions.

Further, - it was during theée

f"conversations ‘that James Treffinger
-made allegations to DeMiro and others—

‘ultimately unfounded -~ that Matthew Kirnan
had taken  excessive and unauthorized




© . treasurer's fees from Treffinder's campaign,
., and  instructed DeMiro to confront Kirnan.
AkThreugh these discussions, the Government
learned that Kirnan had made false
atatements on his tax returns, and when
confronted by the Government with that
evidence, Kirman agreed to cooperate in the
~investigation of Treffinger and, as the
Court - is aware, pleaded quilty to a tax-
fraud offense. |

. Finally, the enormous value of Mr.
DeMiro's exceptional cooperation was due in
 no small part to the personal efforts he
- made during his cooperation with the
Gnvernment. He made himself available on a
p mom&nt s notice to meet with the Government
?}_end to make consensual recordings, and spent
countless. hours assisting the -investigation
“without complaint. His cooperation was
truthful, complete, accurate and invaluable,

- Based upon the foregoing, it is clear
‘that Mr. DeMiro has provided substantial
assistance in the  investigation  and

' prosecution of others and has provided’
_useful and reliable information about their
,Aactiv1taes in a timely manner.  On this
Lbasis, and pursuant to Section 5K1.1 of the
- - Sentencing Guidelines, the United States
" 'respectfully moves [sic] the Court to grant
i a downward departure from the Guidelines in
its sentence."

v vr_oanbzx:.nl to 3].
lidudéé(,,giSsell‘ sentenced, respondent to a three-year
”¢i~§f;batieg&ﬁ§yterm: " As conditions of probation, Judge Bissell
'ZreﬁQired respondent to be cenfined to his residence for a period

va'*"*‘“f“‘«ef‘1t:v:m mbnths and contribute 300 hours of communxty service. He

ﬂid‘nct 1mpose a fine due to respondent's inability to pay.




Upon a gg novo ‘review of the record, we determine to grant
the QAE s motion for final discipline.

Respondent has been convicted of conspiracy to obstruct

:ﬁv -ju§g1¢g, in violation of 18 U.S.C.A. 371, admitting that, at the

I ~béﬁ§§€fdffthen*E33ex County Executive James W. Treffinger, he met
&iﬁh the County Engineer and instructed him to create false and

 d miﬁlnadiﬁé'documents in order to stymie a federal investigation.

*ff,Rebpoﬁdént'é' criminal conviction clearly and convincingly

‘dd}aaﬁbﬁstraies'thét he has committed "a criminal act that reflects

j;#selyv‘dn g(his) honesty, trustworthiness or fitness as a

d;&ﬁ?&x",~and‘ that he has engaged in "conduct ‘involving;
7 ‘“ai?honesty, fraud, deceit or misrepresentation.” RPC 8.4(b) and 
U
‘"’ The exlstence of a criminal conviction is conclusive
‘évidence of respondent s guilt. R. 1:20-13(c)(1l); In re Gipson,
103 M 75, 77 (1986). Only the quantum of discipline to be
#iﬁéoaed”femﬁins at issue. R. 1:20-13(c)(2); In_re Lu ettd,'lls
gmg* 443 445 (1989)
| The level of discipline imposed in disciplinary ‘matters.
ba#ed on the commission of a crime depends on a number of
;factors, 1nc1ud1ng the "nature and severity of the crime, whether’
the crlme is related to the practlce of law, and any mitigating

factors such as respondent s reputatlon, his pfior trustworthy




cdgducﬁ and genéral good conduct." In_re Lunetta, supra, i18

nxat 445-446 " Discipline is imposed even though an attorney's

“' offense was not related to the practlce of law. In re Kigngar,
105 §.3, 391 (1987). |

?he ‘OAE argued that the law and facts of this case require

the imposition of an eighteen-month suspen51on. As the OAE

”‘ fnoted,'at the time of his crime, respondent was an experienced

. member of the bar, particularly knowledgeable  in the area of

'fﬁhm;cipal and governmental matters. He could have declined to

o ;asglgt hxs longtlme associate, Treffinger, but decided not to do

 [§6; “In support of its position, the OARE cited a number of cases
HL;herﬁ attorneys convicted of federal felonies in the coursé of
*doing’ a favor" for a friend, associate or client received
’nsubsﬁfhtiil;sﬁSPénsions from the practicé._ |

";g;gg;ggggg} 147 N.J. 559 (1997), involved an attorney who
 1.§1¢&&§& quiity to receiving more than $10,000 in cash iﬁ a

,‘transaction, and failing to file the report of the transaction

17» required by 1aw. A client retained Chung to represent him in the

‘Pﬂt%ﬁ?ﬁe~76f a restaurant. The client delivered more than

-$160:&06kﬂih cash to Chung in connection with this sale.

‘Thereafter, Chung made fifteen cash deposits of less than $10, OOOV

”~ 9] each into flve different escrow accounts at five dlfferent banks.

yVThe depoamt'sllps used for the transactions did not have any




natation as to the source or purpose of the cash. Neither Chung’
nox his law firm filed any Forms 8300 (Report of Cash PaymentS‘
ﬂf ﬁwer $10 000 Received in a Trade or Business) with the Internal
r ReVBnue Service. Furthermore, there were no Currency Transaction
Regorts filed by any bank, relative to the cash deposits into the
bank acceunts of Chung's law firm. In recommending the
1mpasition ef an eighteen—month suspension, which was adopted by
the Court, we took note of Chung S seventeen-year career without .

‘any_prior~inc1dents, his performance of 1legal serv;ceseto the

"iﬁpéof“andicaMmunity organizations for little or no compensation,

('tl“]@the;fabséhee of greed’, and his son's serious neurological

’;Anv'eighteen-mOnth suspension was also imposed in In _re

; 80 N.J. 489 (1979), where the attorney, who had been

admitted to the bar for almost fifty years, pleaded guilty’to‘
‘>obstruction of justice. He had filed an answer in a bankruptcy
%‘actian"~falsely stating that his client had a lawful right to
ﬁmiﬁtain custody of approx1mately t&enty—six tractors and

trailers, knowing full well that the answer was false and that an

k'"f'adﬂénéwm«to a lease covering the vehicles had been backdated to

suppbrt his client's claim.

2 Chung did, however, expect to receive more work from the client
~ he was a831stinq.




’
.
.

A two-year susPen51on was imposed in In re Bateman, 132 __g_
;~297 (1993),, afte: the attorney was convicted of mail fraud
’ éénsp;racy* and false statement on a loan application,‘ thereﬁy
f»assisting‘a,client in obtaining an inflated appraisal value ofv
property. \
ﬂ, Simllarly, in In re Gassaro, 124 N.J. 395 (1991), a two-year
 §uspenBion was imposed for an attorney who was convicted of
ﬂw115$g¢pépira¢y to defraud the Internal Revenue Service by writing two-
ﬁ:‘iiéﬁters on behalf of his father-in-law, stating that the father-
’;finéiéﬁgh;d not collected any money on a bad debt, when, in fact,
L ‘i‘{ﬁie‘h&@,f:@iléeted $10,000. |

| §gg ‘also In re Konigsberg, 132 N.J. 263 (1993) (thirty-
three~month time~-served suspension imposed after the attorney
pleaded guilty to making a false statement to an agency of the
Uhlted States, having backdated a contract for a client in order

- to obtaln 1n9urance ‘proceeds for the client); In re Gillesp
124 ﬂ_lg 81 (1991) (three-year suspension imposed where an
atterney pleaded gullty to a charge of willfully aiding and

“agsxstinq in the presentation of false corporate tax returns);

_Vap , 140 N.J. 78 (1995) (three-year suspension imposed
*where the‘attorney pleaded guilty to making a false statement to
. an znstitutxon 1nsured by the Federal Savings and Loan Insurance

Corporatlon, and obstruction of Justlce; Van Dam made a false

11




statemeh£ te federal authorities regarding the activities of his
Vs’f}$w7per€ﬁer;and gave false testimony during a deposition),

| The OAE 8 position is that an eighteen-month SUSpGnSlon

ﬁﬂekappears ‘to be the minimum suspension imposed for a federal felony

uiﬁconva.ction, the only exception being In re DeSantis, 171 N.J. 142

-?(2002). In DeSantis, the attorney pleaded gullty to obstructlon
of justxce.~ He gave false testimony and engaged in a cover-up to
destruct an SEC 1nvestlgatlon of insider tradlng, in which he was
‘eeglnvolved.h Although DeSantis' criminal activity did not involve
fﬁﬂe;h;s 1agﬁprac£ice, it extended over a substantial period of time.

f:ih adﬂiti0n, he was motivated by self-gain. Although we noted

1xgth&t thls type of misconduct ordinarily warrants a lengthy term
J,,of suspension, we determined to impose a one-year suspension
'becauae of extensive mitlgatlng factors. The Court aéreed. At

”;eithe time of the Court's order, however, DeSantis had already been

f!iﬁtemporarlly suspended for almost elghteen months.

 In the OAE's view, the above-cited cases, combined with the

J;'7 e@ifigeting factors of respondent's substantial coopefation with

gtﬁel_QDVefnment and his previously-unblemished disciplinary
‘?‘ ‘histery, indieete that a suspension of eighteen months is the
yﬁﬁprdpiiate discipline in this case. The OAE suggested that the

- éﬁspensidnf’be"mAde retroactive to June 2, 2003, the date of

f*Qfeépbndeﬁt's temporary suspension.

12




, }Ré.spondént ‘conspired to obstruct justice in an attempt to
kﬁald a fraend His dishonest and illegal actions were aimed at
?ithe people of Essex County and, regardless of his motivation,

‘licannot be excused As suggested by the OAE, we considered as

‘“??~mitigat1n9 factgrs respondent's cooperatlon with the government

&  and his unhlemished career, prior to this incident. We find that
'this matter is akin to In_ re DeSantis, supra, 171 y_;; 142
;712302)1 where the attorney engaged in dishonest conduct to
 e  obstruct an | SEC investigation; - he received an elghteen-month
suspension, ‘in view of extensive mitigating factors. 1In light of
ethe forego;ng, we determlne that an elghteen-month suspen31on 18'
ie“appropriate ‘here as well. The‘ suspension is to be rmade
"retroactive tof' ‘June 2, | 2003. Vice-Chai: william J.
‘to Shaugﬁaessy, Esq., did not participate.
| we further determlne to require respondent to relmburse thek
v”’Diéciplinary Overslght Committee for admlnlstratlve costs.

Dlsc1p11nary Revxew Board
Mary J. Maudsley, Chair

’enne K. DeCore
ef Counsel
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